
 

 

 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 

 
10.00 AM - DYDD MAWRTH, 23 GORFFENNAF 2024 

 
CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, PORT TALBOT A 

MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 
 Rhan 1 

 
1.  Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd   

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   

 
3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 
4.  Gwneud cais am ymweliad(au) safle gan y ceisiadau a gyflwynwyd   

 
 Adroddiad/au gan Bennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 

 
 Adran A - Materion i'w Penderfynu 

 
 Ceisiadau Cynllunio yr Argymhellir eu bod yn cael eu 

Cymeradwyo: 
 
5.  Cais Rhif. P2023-0101 - McDonalds Restaurants Ltd, Alltwen  

(Tudalennau 7 - 40) 
Erection of a freestanding drive-thru/restaurant, car parking, 
landscaping and associated works, including Customer Order 
Displays (COD) and play frame, at Tesco Car Park, Gwyn's Pl, 
Alltwen, Pontardawe, SA8 3AZ. 
 
 
 

AGENDA 



 Adran B - Materion Er Gwybodaeth 
 

6.  Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 13 May to 15 July 2024  
(Tudalennau 41 - 42) 
 

7.  Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 13 May to 15 July 2024  (Tudalennau 
43 - 44) 
 

8.  Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 13 May to 15 July 2024  (Tudalennau 
45 - 68) 
 

9.  Eitemau brys   
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100B(4)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Lleol 1972. 

 
 
 

K.Jones 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot Dydd Mercher, 17 Gorffennaf 2024 
 
 



 
 
Aelodaeth Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd J.Jones 

 
Is-Gadeirydd: 
 

Y Cynghorydd T.Bowen 
 

Aelodau: 
 

Councillors S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
H.Davies, C.James, C.Jordan, S.Thomas, 
R.Mizen, P.Rogers a/ac A.R.Aubrey 
 

Aelod Cabinet: Councillor A.Wingrave 
 
Gwneud cais i siarad yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 
Mae gan y cyhoedd hawl i fynd i'r cyfarfod ac annerch y pwyllgor yn unol â 
gweithdrefn gytunedig y cyngor sydd ar gael yn www.npt.gov.uk/planning.   
 
Os hoffech siarad yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ynghylch cais yr adroddwyd 
amdano i'r pwyllgor hwn, mae'n rhaid i chi: 
 

       Gysylltu â'r Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ysgrifenedig, naill ai 
drwy'r post yn: Y Ganolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot SA13 1PJ, neu'n 
ddelfrydol drwy e-bostio: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk. 

       Sicrhau eich bod yn gwneud eich cais i siarad ddau ddiwrnod gwaith 
cyn dyddiad y cyfarfod fan bellaf (erbyn 2pm ar y dydd Gwener 
blaenorol os yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth).  

       Nodi’n glir rif yr eitem neu'r cais rydych am siarad amdani/o a 
chadarnhewch a ydych yn cefnogi'r cais neu’n ei wrthwynebu. 

       Rhoi eich enw a'ch cyfeiriad (a fydd ar gael i'r cyhoedd oni bai fod 
rhesymau penodol dros gyfrinachedd). 

 
Sylwer, dim ond un person sy’n gallu siarad ar ran pob 'categori' ar gyfer 
pob cais h.y. y gwrthwynebydd, y cefnogwr, yr ymgeisydd/asiant, y 
Cyngor Cymuned/Tref. Ceir manylion llawn yng ngweithdrefn gytunedig y 
cyngor. 
 
Yn ogystal, os yw gwrthwynebydd yn dymuno siarad, hysbysir yr 
ymgeisydd/asiant gan y cyngor. 
 
Os ydych yn dymuno trafod unrhyw agwedd ar siarad cyhoeddus, 
ffoniwch dîm y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01639 763313. 

http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


Cyflwyno sylwadau ar geisiadau cynllunio yr adroddir amdanynt i'r 
pwyllgor 

Os ydych yn dymuno cyflwyno sylwadau ar gais a gyflwynir i'r Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio hwn, sylwer bod rhaid i'r Adran Gynllunio dderbyn y rhain erbyn 
2.00pm ar y dydd Gwener cyn cyfarfod y pwyllgor fan bellaf (yn seiliedig 
ar y cyfarfod dydd Mawrth arferol). Os nad yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth, 
dylid eu derbyn erbyn 2.00pm ar y diwrnod gwaith olaf ond un cyn y 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio fan bellaf.  

Caiff sylwadau a dderbynnir yn unol â phrotocol y cyngor eu crynhoi a, lle 
y bo'n briodol, gwneir sylwadau arnynt ar ffurf Taflen Ddiwygio, a 
ddosberthir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio drwy e-bost ar y noson cyn 
cyfarfod y pwyllgor, a'i chyflwyno ar ffurf copi caled yn y cyfarfod. 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(MULTI-LOCATION MEETING – COUNCIL CHAMBER PORT TALBOT 
AND MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Members Present:  21 May 2024 
 
 
Chairperson: Councillor J.Jones 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor T.Bowen 

 
Councillors: S.Paddison, R.Davies, H.Davies, C.James, 

C.Jordan, P.Rogers and A.R.Aubrey 
  
Local Members: Councillors S.Renkes and P.D.Richards   

 
Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, G.White, D.Thomas, J.King, 
N.Waters and T.Davies 

 

 
1. CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chairperson welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interests received. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
That the minutes of the meetings held on 26 March 2024 be 
approved as an accurate record. 
 
 

4. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED  
 
A request for a site visit on Application No P2023/0960, 40 Pentwyn, 
Baglan Road was made, but was not supported by the Committee. 
 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda3



 

210524 

 
5. APPLICATION NO. P2023/0960 - 40 PENTWYN BAGLAN ROAD  

 
That in accordance with Officers’ recommendations, Application No. 
P2023/0960 – 40 Pentwyn, Baglan Road, Baglan, be Approved, 
subject to the conditions detailed within the circulated report, and the 
amendment sheet. 
 
 

6. APPEALS RECEIVED - 18 MARCH 2024 TO 13 MAY 2024  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 18 MARCH 2024 TO 13 MAY 2024  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

8. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items received. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen6



 

 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

 

APPLICATION NO: P2023/0101 DATE: 6TH Feb 2023 

PROPOSAL:  Erection of a freestanding drive-thru/restaurant, car parking, 
landscaping and associated works, including Customer 
Order Displays (COD) and play frame 

LOCATION: Tesco Car Park, Gwyn's Pl, Alltwen, Pontardawe SA8 3AZ 

APPLICANT: McDonald's Restaurants Ltd 

TYPE: Full Plans  

WARD: Alltwen 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of the local Ward 
Member. Responses from the local community have been mixed – roughly half and 
half for/against the proposed development - and high in the number of individual 
representations received. In these circumstances, the local Ward Member considers 
the application should be determined by Members of the Planning Committee rather 
than by Officers’ delegated powers. The Ward Member’s land-use planning 
comments are set out below in the relevant section of this report. 
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site comprises part of the car park serving the existing Tesco 
Pontardawe store.  Access to the application site is obtained via a spur on a 
roundabout on the main A4067 which also serves the Tesco store with its separate, 
free-standing petrol filling station. The application site is located at the north-eastern 
end of the car park, furthest away from the Tesco store and closest to the petrol 
filling station. 
 
The site is bounded along its southern side by the A4067. There is an elevated 
pedestrian footbridge over the A4067 which connects the site to the larger residential 
areas of Alltwen. 
 
The site is bounded along its northern edge by Tesco’s delivery/service road and the 
River Tawe. There is a pedestrian footbridge over the river which connects the site to 
Cwmtawe Community and relocated Godre’r Graig Primary Schools as well as 
Cwmtawe Comprehensive School, Pontardawe Leisure Centre, Pontardawe Football 
Club and Ynysderw Retail Park. Pontardawe Town Centre is directly to the north, 
approximately half a mile away. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen7

Eitem yr Agenda5



 

 

EXISTING SITE LOCATION PLAN: 
 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposed development comprises of a modern freestanding single storey 
McDonald’s restaurant with drive-thru, car parking, landscaping and associated 
works, including customer order displays (COD) and a play frame. Provision is made 
for takeaway customers, both from the counter and from the drive-thru lane. The 
restaurant has a Gross Internal Area of 350sqm of which 78sqm is for indoor dining. 
An external play area is located on the external patio area, with facilities for younger 
customers to climb and explore. The specification of the play structure, which is 
broadly similar to the one at McDonald’s drive-thru on the M4/A465 junction at 
Skewen, has been included as part of the supporting documentation.  
 
The proposal includes the provision of 31 car parking spaces, including 2 accessible 
bays, 3 electric vehicle charging bays, and both covered and uncovered cycle stands 
to provide 13 cycle spaces including an accessible space for adapted bicycles. 
 
The application is accompanied by a suite of drawings/plans and supporting 
technical reports, including: 
 

 Planning/Supporting Statement 

 Noise Assessment 

 Odour Control Assessment 

 Flood Consequences Assessment 

 Health Impact Assessment 

 Transport Assessment 

 Travel Plan 

 Landscape Plan 

 Biodiversity Enhancement Plan  

Tudalen8



 

 

 Drainage Strategy 

 Engineering Strategy 

 Phase 1 Ground Conditions Desk Study (including Coal Mining Report) 

 Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report 

 Construction Environmental Management Plan 

 Lighting Design & Schedule 

 [Traffic} Model Development & Forecasting Report 

 Local [Traffic] Model Validation Report 

 Technical Design Transport Note 

 Delivery & Servicing Management Plan  
 
All plans / documents submitted in respect of this application can be viewed on the 
Council’s online register.   
 
PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT PLANS: 
 

 
 

Tudalen9

http://appsportal.npt.gov.uk/ords/idocs12/f?p=Planning:2:0::NO::P2_REFERENCE:P2023/0101


 

 

 
 
NEGOTIATIONS 
 
Negotiations have been undertaken to improve traffic, highway safety and active 
travel provision as well as biodiversity enhancement/soft landscaping proposals. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has the following relevant planning history:  
 

 P2023/0107 

 

Insertion of new internally 

illuminated acrylic 'McDonald's' logo 

panel to existing 7m high Tesco 

totem petrol sign 

 

Approved 24.04.2023 

 P2023/0106 

 

Various site signage including 4 no. 

freestanding internally illuminated 

digital menu board signs, 2 no. 

'McDonald's' banner unit signs, 1 

no. internally illuminated 'Play Land' 

sign and 27 no. individual 'dot' 

signs to assist with patron 

circulation, including pedestrian 

 
 
 
 
Approved 24.04.2023 

Tudalen10



 

 

crossing, speed limit and similar 

directional/warning signs 

 P2023/0105 

 

Installation of 6 no. internally 

illuminated 'M' and 'McDonald's' 

fascia signs, 3 no. internally 

illuminated booth lettering signs 

and 1 no. internally illuminated pay 

booth screen to new drive-thru 

restaurant 

Approved 24.04.2023 

 P2023/0104 

 

Proposed 8m tall freestanding 

composite aluminium totem sign 

with internally illuminated 

McDonald's logo panels 

Withdrawn 24.04.2023 

 P2012/0518 

 

Erection of 44 illuminated and 

non-illuminated signs to store, car 

park and petrol filling station. 

 

Approved 21 June 2012 

 P2004/0789 

 

Re-orientation of petrol filling 

station and omission of Class A3 

restaurant (P2003/0825)  

Approved 20 July 2004 

 P2000/1394 

 
 
A1 retail, A1 food store retail, A3 
fast food Restaurant and 
take-away, petrol filling station and 
kiosk, public house and garden 
centre  

Approved 24 February 2003 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Highways: No objection subject to conditions. 

Active Travel: No Objection, however, Visibility at existing crossings due to 

vegetative growth remains a concern that can be dealt with by condition. 

Drainage: No objection. SAB approval is required. 
 
Biodiversity: No objection subject to a condition requiring the ecological 
enhancement to be delivered as set out in the submitted plans. 

Tudalen11



 

 

 
Forward Planning/LDP Policy: It is considered that LDP Policy R3 is not applicable 

in this case as the proposal is not for retail development as such. However, Future 

Wales Policy 6 is relevant since it specifically refers to commercial development as 

well as retail. Policy 6 states that significant new commercial…facilities must be 

located within town and city centres. The proposed restaurant is considered to be 

large enough (in the context of Pontardawe and the Swansea Valley) to be 

considered significant. However, the policy goes on to say a sequential approach 

must be used to inform the identification of the best location for these developments, 

presumably accepting the possibility of them being acceptable outside town centres. 

Although the applicants’ planning statement lacks detail about the sequential 

approach, it seems reasonable to accept that there is no sequentially preferable 

location for the proposal within the Pontardawe area. Although the Parc Ynysderw 

retail park is significantly nearer (contrary to what the planning statement says) it 

probably still would not qualify as edge of centre, and there do not appear to be any 

suitable sites there for the proposal.  

Estates: A third party request has been made to assess Glanrhyd Industrial Estate 
as an alternative site location. We have put the site forward as an employment site 
as part of the LDP and it is not without it challenges. It is also further away from 
Pontardawe Town Centre than the application site. 
 
Land Contamination: No objection. 

Environmental Health: I have examined the documents submitted with this 

application in relation to noise and odour. They seem to be comprehensive and 

appear to mitigate the potential adverse effects of locating this type of business here. 

If the specifications of these mitigation measures resolve the potential issues, as 

stated, I do not see these as grounds for refusal. I recommend that that the operating 

hours are kept in line with the quiet night-time hours of 23.00 to 07.00hrs to prevent 

any unnecessary disturbance from loitering vehicles, gathering groups, or loud car 

stereos and engine/exhaust systems, during those hours.  

Public Rights of Way: No PRoWs are affected. 
 
Designing Out Crime Officer: Consideration should be given to CCTV, security, 
signage and lighting. 
 
DCWW: No objection subject to a condition preventing surface water/land drainage 
connecting to the public sewerage system. 
 
Natural Resources Wales: No objection subject to the imposition of an unexpected 
contamination condition  
 
The Coal Authority: Part of the site lies within a High Risk Coal Area. Records 

indicate that three mine entries are recorded within or within influencing distance of 

the site. No objection subject to imposition of a condition requiring the results of any 

Tudalen12



 

 

intrusive site investigation work to be signed as safe by a suitably competent 

persons. 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The local Ward Member and Cilybebyll Community Council were notified on 13 
February 2023 (original plans), 26 October 2023 (amended plans) and 10 April 2024 
(minor revisions). 
 
Ward Member comments: Whilst the creation of jobs is to be welcomed in the area, 
I question the appropriateness of the proposed location in terms of health, wellbeing, 
safeguarding, transport & highways. 
 
Our food environment has developed in a way which prioritises convenience over 

health, with a focus on easy, quick foods that will often be energy dense and high in 

fat and/or sugar and are perceived as more affordable. Alongside this we are 

increasingly less active as a nation due to our daily work and travel patterns.  These 

combine to tip the energy balance towards unhealthy weight, making overweight and 

obesity the biggest public health challenge that we face. My points of concern are 

listed below: 

 Should planning permission be granted to build a fast food restaurant & 
take-away at this site, it would appear to be counteractive to the goals of 
improving children’s health, set by the Welsh Government and contrary to the 
aim of working ‘in partnership’ with other agencies. A Health Impact 
Assessment should be completed before decision. 

 The proposed site is unable to cope with the projected increased vehicular 
traffic that would result through building at this site. 

 Traffic & air pollution levels should be monitored & available for scrutiny 
before considering the placement of an outdoor play area before decision. 

 Safeguarding and protecting children and adults is a high priority for Neath 
Port Talbot Council. Issues surrounding contextual safeguarding should be 
explored through joint collaboration with South Wales Police, with emphasis 
on their experience at other fast food restaurants within NPT CBC. 

 A community impact assessment should be completed, with consideration 
given to the potential impact on existing local food outlets & disruption to local 
residents, before decision. 

 
Cilybebyll Community Council comments: Although some Members did not have 

anything against a McDonalds coming to the area and would welcome the creation 

of jobs for local people, it was felt by the majority of Members that the site of the 

proposed McDonalds was not suitable. Reasons being:  

- The site would be too close to Cwmtawe Community School and Godre’r Graig 
Primary temporary accommodation.  
- The site would interfere with safe routes to school for children walking from Alltwen, 
due to it being placed directly on the route at Tesco car park. 
- There would be a huge impact on traffic. The roundabout near Tesco is already 
jammed at various points throughout the day – a McDonalds at the site would only 
exacerbate this. 

Tudalen13



 

 

- There are already plenty of fast-food options in Pontardawe. Some felt there would 
be no need for more of these in the town and suggested alternative areas such as 
Glanrhyd Industrial Estate. 
- The fact that children would be passing McDonalds on the way to and from school 
could have an impact on child obesity. This would be in conflict with Welsh 
Government advice on this. 
 
Pontardawe Town Council comments: The Special Planning Committee of the 

Pontardawe Town Council voted against the development due to the following 

concerns: 

- Despite the Pandemic and unlike many Town Centres, Pontardawe is 

continuing to thrive, due to regeneration projects and continual partnerships 

between the unitary authority, Town Council, Arts Centre, third sector, 

Chamber of Commerce, the community and has a resilient high street with 

mixed use retailers. 

- Both the Welsh Government and Neath Port Talbot Council are trying to 

promote and encourage sustainability within Town Centres. A drive through 

and out of town restaurant is in direct opposition to this goal. The location at 

‘Gwyn’s drift’ will not compliment the local economy as there would be a 

potential loss of footfall and possibly jobs in the Town Centre due to impact of 

the restaurant, which would be close, but not within the Town Centre, where 

there are already a number of food vendors. We believe that Tesco 

Pontardawe was denied Planning for the creation of a Café in Gwyn’s drift 

during previous applications due to the impact on the Town Centre economy. 

- Drive-through restaurants are part of a culture we are trying to move away 

from. Urban development that prioritises cars is inconsistent with both the 

Welsh and UK government goals to improve wellbeing, food systems and 

public health. We should Instead, look at wider pavements, segregated 

bicycle paths and widespread public transport – where we can reduce our 

reliance on cars and fast food –this represents the healthy urban future that 

experts suggest we should try to create. 

- In a previous Wales Obesity consultation, a ban on the sale of energy drinks 
to under 16s and clamping down on the availability of hot food takeaways 
near schools have been proposed as solutions to rising obesity in Wales. In 
2013, the then Chief Medical officer for Wales said that banning applications 
for fast food outlets near schools should be considered to tackle increasing 
childhood obesity.  
 

- No Health Impact assessment has been carried out to determine the effect of 
a fast food restaurant and drive through on the young people of Pontardawe. 
Also, a restaurant purporting to support waking and cycling via Active travel 
should not include a drive through. 
 

- The outlet is scheduled for 24/7 opening which will create late night noise and 

light pollution for residences in Alltwen and lower Pontardawe. A 24/7 

restaurant and drive through will create a hub for anti-social behaviour and 

Tudalen14



 

 

vehicular crime, which the local neighbourhood Police service are ill-equipped 

to handle 

- As the restaurant site is also adjacent to the Tawe and there is a strong 

likelihood of plastic and other litter finding its way into the river which will 

damage local wildlife and the local ecosystem. Fast food outlets also 

encourage seagulls and rats due to excessive litter issues. 

As the proposed development falls within Cilybebyll and not Pontardawe: 

- Cilybebyll/ Alltwen is defined as a small local centre and not a Town. 

Developments should therefore comply with those suitable for a small local 

centre. 

- Of note in the LDP (amongst other points) is point 3.0.14, which states: 

’Within settlement limits, most types of development will be acceptable in 

principle subject to compliance with all relevant policy and subject to it being 

proportionate in scale and form to the role and function of the settlement. For 

example, larger scale proposals, such as developments of more than a few 

dwellings or uses that will attract or accommodate significant numbers of 

people are only likely to be acceptable in larger centres or towns where there 

are adequate facilities and transport infrastructure.’ 

- The proposed development is also within 400m of more than one school and 

on the designated safe school walking route from Alltwen. If the new English 

medium school is agreed this will increase the number of schools within 

unacceptably close proximity to the restaurant. Throughout the UK over the 

past decade, multiple planning applications for McDonalds restaurants have 

been declined by councils. Importantly and repeatedly, planning permission 

was often declined due to public health concerns where sites were to be 

located near to schools and colleges. 

- The proposed development will reduce the number of parking spaces in the 

Tesco Car Park substantially 

- There is already significant congestion in that area which is likely to increase 

at the site. This will impact on the traffic flow on the A4067 not only into 

Pontardawe, but on the main trunk road to Ystalyfera and beyond 

- The additional congestion on the A4067 could have a knock-on effect in 

Trebanos as motorists try to find alternative routes 

- Pontardawe Place/Community plan wishes to encourage visitors to 

Pontardawe from outside the area by publicising its  ‘Market Town’ feel 

(Small independent shops, village festivals, History and Heritage etc.) a drive- 

through in this location is too close to the Town Centre and will create a very 

unattractive entrance to the Town  

Tudalen15



 

 

- For those who wish to visit a drive through McDonalds restaurant, there is 

already a McDonalds drive through restaurant approximately 6 miles from the 

proposed site in Morriston 

- The counter argument that there would be jobs created does not outweigh the 

negatives as the jobs are low calibre with only 30 full time positions, and the 

balance as part time. Even if those part time jobs would provide employment 

for young people, this would likely be negated by job losses in other 

establishments within the Town Centre and surrounding area due to additional 

competition and loss of footfall -  There has been no impact assessment 

carried out to determine the effect on local businesses 

Neighbouring properties were consulted on 14 February 2023 (original plans) and 27 
October 2023 (amended plans). 
 
A site notice was also displayed on 14 February 2023 (original plans) and 27 
October 2023 (amended plans). 
 
In response, to date 149 no. representations have been received (77 objecting, 72 
supporting), with the issues raised summarised as follows: - 
 

OBJECT 
 

 Detrimental effect on existing town centre businesses 

 Many years ago when the planning permission was submitted for the Tesco 
store, the store was not granted a cafe area for customers, to stop potential 
customers being taken away from local independent businesses 

 There is already an excessive number of eat-in and take-away restaurants in 
Pontardawe, including multiple chip shops, Chinese restaurants, Indian 
Restaurants, Kebab houses etc. we don't need any more fast food 

 Evidence that out of town centres have already destroyed city/town centres 
such as Swansea and Neath can be seen in the number of empty shops 

 The close proximity of Cwmtawe Comprehensive School will only serve to 
take advantage of these young impressionable people by enticing them to 
McDonald's on their way to/from school. McDonald's food has little nutritional 
value and is packed with fat and additives which will only worsen childhood 
obesity in our community 

 Should be rejected on the grounds of health and well-being of the population 
and in particular the children of NPT 

 The increase in traffic would cause congestion, particularly at school times 

 The location is already a very busy supermarket next to the A4067 bypass 
which carries a significant volume of traffic at all hours of the day. There are 
frequently tailbacks along the bypass queuing into and out of Tesco .The 
current roundabout would struggle to cope with anymore volume 

 The pedestrian route from Tesco does not follow the obvious desire-line 
directly to the store 

 Pedestrians approaching the zebra crossing from the proposed McDonalds 
site are currently obscured by the Vehicle Restraint system (VRS) that is in 
place so that vehicles leaving the car park are unable to see them. With an 
increase in pedestrians the likelihood of a collision on the crossing will 
increase. 

Tudalen16



 

 

 It should also be noted that the crossing is poorly maintained and the belisha 
beacons do not work. 

 Near misses are not reflected in accident data but from my experience a 

person has to be very careful using this crossing as vehicles frequently fail to 

stop. The applicant may state that there are no recorded accidents at this 

crossing and no action is required to improve the visibility.  However, with the 

opening of a McDonalds restaurant it should be expected that there will be a 

significant increase in users of the crossing the likelihood of an accident will 

increase unless improvements to the visibility of the crossing are made. 

 The application will reduce the number of supermarket car parking places 

 Despair at the amount of McDonalds litter and the nearest store is 6 miles 
away, a local store will make litter worse and be detrimental to the 
environment 

 My Green Valley - an environmental and litter picking organisation in the 
Swansea Valley - has 220 volunteers who already clean up McDonalds litter 
from popular spots such as Gellionnen mountain, River Tawe and the 
Swansea Canal, so it doesn’t take much imagination to envisage how this 
problem will increase and expand.  McDonalds employ a litter picker to clean 
a radius of 150 metres around the branch - very generally speaking, this 
would just about cover the Tesco car park.  If you are taking your food to-go, 
you’re not even likely to open it within that radius, let alone dispose of the 
packaging within that radius.   

 It will bring an increase in antisocial behaviour, it will become a hangout place 
for rowdy groups, which will cause noise pollution and aggravation in a 
residential area 

 Increase air pollution with a drive through option as it encourages cars to sit 
idling rather than people parking their vehicles and going into a store 

 The air pollution/smell that will be produced by the fryers (despite any filters 
that are used, the smell still escapes). Those individuals living on nearby Lon 
Tan Yr Allt already deal with the pollution and smell from the proximity of 
traffic on the A4067 passing by their homes. The odour and aroma of grease 
will be an additional burden to bear 

 Cause extra light pollution which has a negative impact on wildlife and people 
living in the vicinity 

 This proposal will increase pollution in the river Tawe, posing a detrimental 
risk to the river and all the species who exist within its waters, some of which 
are protected and classed as 'at risk' 

 Drainage concerns, this area is notorious for poor sewage system as it is 
already over populated  

 Better to use the undeveloped Glanrhyd site up the road to install it there 
where it will cause little disruption and might draw further developments 
 
SUPPORT 
 

 Fantastic idea, it will give an opportunity for jobs for younger people and those 
who can’t drive 

 It will reduce the need of local residents to travel by car to the nearest 

alternative which is approx. 10 mile round trip repeated many times is a lot of 

unnecessary mileage when it is the council's policy to reduce car use 

Tudalen17



 

 

 It will encourage more business to the area in the form of delivery company's 

which will further reduce the use of private cars locally 

 I have 3 kids and don't drive, to treat them to a McDonalds, I've got to catch 2 

buses just to get to one, so having one nearby would be amazing 

 The play area proposed will help many families as there is no soft play area in 
the village or neighbouring villages and towns 

 It will attract visitors from the upper Swansea valley who then in turn will visit 
our local shops 

 I heard complaints regarding litter but I put this onus back on individuals - they 
should use the bins provided 

 If planning permission is approved, the council should impose a condition that 
some energy reduction measures are installed 

 McDonalds is known to help communities and sponsor local sport teams and 

this could be a great help to our local football and rugby clubs 

REPORT 
 
The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the 
Council to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable 
development (or wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in 
consideration of the Council’s duty and the “sustainable development principle”, as 
set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council 
has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 
The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 makes walking and cycling the preferred 
option for shorter journeys, particularly everyday journeys, such as to and from a 
workplace or shops and services. 
 
The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 places a duty on the Council to maintain and 
enhance biodiversity, promote the resilience of ecosystems and increase their ability 
to adapt to events such as the impacts of climate change. 
 
National Planning Policies 
 
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, 
setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets 
out a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning system, 
including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation 
and climate resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and 
wellbeing of our communities. 
 
Future Wales sets out where Welsh Government wants the nation to be in 20 years’ 
time by identifying 11 Outcomes which it says can be achieved if the planning 
system is focused on the long-term and provides quality development in the right 
places for the right reasons. The 11 Outcomes are inter-related and inter-dependent, 
and will improve places and well-being across Wales. The 11 Outcomes are: ‘A 
Wales where people live…..’ 
 
 

Tudalen18



 

 

1 ….and work in connected, inclusive and healthy places; 
2 ….in vibrant rural places with access to homes, jobs and services; 
3 ….in distinctive regions that tackle health and socio-economic inequality through 
sustainable growth; 
4 ….in places with a thriving Welsh Language; 
5 ….and work in towns and cities which are a focus and springboard for sustainable 
growth; 
6 ….in places where prosperity, innovation and culture and promoted; 
7 ….in places where travel is sustainable; 
8 …. In places with world-class digital infrastructure; 
9 …. In places that sustainably manage their natural resources and reduce pollution; 
10 …in places with biodiverse, resilient and connected ecosystems; and 
11 …in places which are decarbonised and climate-resilient.’ 
 
The following Future Wales policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of 
this application: 
 
Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  
Policy 6 – Town Centre First 
Policy 8 - Flooding 
Policy 9 – Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure  
Policy 12 – Regional Connectivity 
Policy 13 - Supporting Digital Communications 
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)  
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes 
towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) 
Act 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key 
legislation and resultant duties such as the Socio-economic Duty. A well-functioning 
planning system is fundamental for sustainable development and achieving 
sustainable places 
 
PPW promotes action at all levels of the planning process which is conducive 
to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its communities. It 
encourages a wider, sustainable and problem solving outlook which focuses on 
integrating and addressing multiple issues rather than on an approach which is 
fragmented, un-coordinated and deals with issues in isolation. It provides an 
opportunity to remove any actual or perceived problems in current approaches and 
stimulate and support innovative and creative ideas as well as high standards of 
evidence and assessment to underpin the preparation of development plans and 
strategies and individual proposals. Monitoring and learning from development 
outcomes so as to drive sustainable improvements in planning practice is also 
important. 
 
The following is of particular relevance in the assessment of this planning 
application: 
 
4.3.18 The Welsh Government operates a ‘town centres first’ policy in relation to the 
location of new retail and commercial centre development. In implementing this 
policy, planning authorities should adopt a sequential approach to the selection of 
new sites in their development plan and when determining planning applications for 

Tudalen19

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2024-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-12_1.pdf


 

 

retail and other complementary uses. By adopting a sequential approach first 
preference should be to locate new development within a retail and commercial 
centre defined in the development plan hierarchy of centres.  
 
4.3.19 If a suitable site or building to meet identified need is not available within a 
retail and commercial centre or centres, then consideration should be given to edge 
of centre sites and if no such sites are suitable or available, only then should 
out-of-centre sites in locations that are accessible by a choice of travel modes, 
including active travel and public transport, be considered. Developers should 
demonstrate that all potential retail and commercial centre options, and then 
edge-of-centre options, have been thoroughly assessed using the sequential 
approach before out-of-centre sites are considered. The onus of proof that central 
sites have been thoroughly assessed rests with the developer.  
 
4.3.20 Edge-of-centre or out-of-centre sites should be accessible by a choice of 
public and private modes of travel. New out-of-centre retail developments or 
extensions to existing out-of-centre developments should not be of a scale, type or 
location likely to undermine the vibrancy, attractiveness and viability of those retail 
and commercial centres that would otherwise serve the community, and should not 
be allowed if they would be likely to put development plan retail strategy at risk. The 
extent of a sequential test should be agreed by pre-application discussion between 
the planning authority and the developer.  
 
4.3.21 The sequential approach applies to retail and all other uses complementary to 
retail and commercial centres. Other complementary uses include, for example, 
financial and professional services (A2), food and drink (A3), offices (B1), hotels 
(C1), educational and other non-residential establishments (D1), leisure (D2) and 
certain other uses such as launderettes and theatres. 
 
4.3.26 All retail planning applications or retail site allocations of 2,500 sq. metres or 
more gross floorspace that are proposed on the edge of or outside designated retail 
and commercial centres should, once a need has been established, be supported by 
a retail impact assessment.  
 
4.3.27 For smaller retail planning applications or site allocations, planning authorities 
will need to determine whether an assessment is necessary, for example when a 
smaller proposal may have a significant impact on a centre. Requests for retail 
impact assessments by planning authorities on smaller developments should be 
proportionate to potential impacts. 
 
PPW 12 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), of 
which the following are of relevance: - 
 

 Technical Advice Note 4: Retail and Commercial Development 

 Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning 

 Technical Advice Note 11: Noise 

 Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

 Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk 

 Technical Advice Note 18: Transport 

 Technical Advice Note 20: Planning and the Welsh Language 

 Technical Advice Note 21: Waste 

 Technical Advice Note 23: Economic Development 

Tudalen20

https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes


 

 

 
The Placemaking Charter, of which Neath Port Talbot Council are a signatory sets 
out the following principles: 
 
People and community  
The local community are involved in the development of proposals. The needs, 
aspirations, health and well-being of all people are considered at the outset. 
Proposals are shaped to help to meet these needs as well as create, integrate, 
protect and/or enhance a sense of community and promote equality.  
 
Location  
Places grow and develop in a way that uses land efficiently, supports and enhances 
existing places and is well connected. The location of housing, employment and 
leisure and other facilities are planned to help reduce the need to travel.  
 
Movement  
Walking, cycling and public transport are prioritised to provide a choice of transport 
modes and avoid dependence on private vehicles. Well designed and safe active 
travel routes connect to the wider active travel and public transport network and 
public transport stations and stops are positively integrated.  
 
Mix of uses  
Places have a range of purposes which provide opportunities for community 
development, local business growth and access jobs, services and facilities via 
walking, cycling or public transport. Development density and a mix of uses and 
tenures helps to support a diverse community and vibrant public realm.  
 
Public realm  
Streets and public spaces are well defined, welcoming, safe and inclusive with a 
distinct identity. They are designed to be robust and adaptable with landscape, green 
infrastructure and sustainable drainage well integrated. They are well connected to 
existing places and promote opportunities for social interaction and a range of 
activities for all people.  
 
Identity  
The positive, distinctive qualities of existing places are valued and respected. The 
unique features and opportunities of a location including heritage, culture, language, 
built and natural physical attributes are identified and responded to. 
 
The proposed development will need to address all of the above placemaking 
principles and the objectives for good design. How your proposals address all of 
these principles will be required as part of any Planning statement/ design and 
access statement submitted with your application. Your application will be assessed 
against these principles as they are key to ensuring that development positively 
contributes towards building sustainable places that support active and healthy lives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen21



 

 

Local Planning Policies 
 
The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the 
following policies are of relevance: 
 
Strategic Policies: 
 

 Policy SP1  Climate Change 

 Policy SP2  Health  

 Policy SP3  Sustainable communities 

 Policy SP4 Infrastructure 

 Policy SP6  Development in the Valleys Strategy Area 

 Policy SP10 Open Space 

 Policy SP11  Employment Growth 

 Policy SP12  Retail 

 Policy SP15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy SP16  Environmental Protection 

 Policy SP18  Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

 Policy SP19  Waste Management 

 Policy SP20 Transport Network 

 Policy SP21  Built Environment and Historic Heritage 

 Policy SP22  Welsh Language 
 

Topic Based Policies: 
 

 Policy SC1 Settlement limits 
 Policy I1  Infrastructure Requirements 

 Policy OS1  Open Space Provision  

 Policy EC4  Protection of Existing Employment Uses  

 Policy EC5  Employment Uses in the Valleys  

 Policy R3  Out of Centre Retail Proposals 

 Policy TO4  Walking and Cycling Routes 

 Policy EN6 Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites  

 Policy EN7  Important Natural Features 

 Policy EN8  Pollution and Land Stability  

 Policy RE2  Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development 

 Policy W3  Waste Management in New Development 

 Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development  

 Policy BE1  Design  

 Policy WL1  Development in Language Sensitive Areas 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance:  
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

 Planning Obligations (October 2016) 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Pollution (October 2016) 

 Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017) 

Tudalen22

https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=37
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=41
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=48
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=59
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=61
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=65
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=72
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=78
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=83
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=89
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=38
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=39
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=60
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=64
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=64
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=67
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=69
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=73
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=73
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=82
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=90
https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_planning_obligations_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_pollution_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7239/spg_open_space_july17.pdf


 

 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Development and the Welsh Language (July 2017) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Appropriate Assessment (AA) 
Screening 
 
The application site does not exceed the Schedule 2 threshold for development of 
this type as outlined within the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. As 
such the application has not been screened in accordance with the requirements of 
Schedule 3 of the Regulations.  
 
The proposed development is not located within a zone of influence for any Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC), Candidate Special Area of Conservation (CSAC) or 
Ramsar sites and as such it is considered that an Appropriate Assessment as set 
down within the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 is not 
required.  
 
Issues 
 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to 
the principle of development, together with the impact on the amenity of the area, 
environmental risk factors, the impact on highway and pedestrian safety, biodiversity, 
economic development, Welsh Language and any other material considerations that 
have been identified through the statutory publicity/consultation exercise. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Settlement Limit 
Strategic LDP Policy SP3 states that ‘The delivery of sustainable healthy and 
cohesive communities and the conservation of the countryside will be promoted’.  
The identification of a settlement hierarchy is used to provide a balanced approach 
to managing growth, directing development to areas reflecting the attributes 
contained within that community and their ability to accommodate growth. As well as 
assessing the role and function of each settlement, the LDP has assessed the 
capacity of land within those settlements to accommodate development. The 
settlement limits identified in the Local Plan provide clarity of where development 
should be directed, with LDP Policy SC1 stating that ‘Development within settlement 
limits that is proportionate in scale and form to the role and function of the settlement 
as set out in the settlement hierarchy will be acceptable in principle.’ 
 
The application site is located within Alltwen/Pontardawe settlement limits and 
sustainable new development is therefore acceptable in principle, subject to other 
development plan policies and detailed development management considerations. 
 
Town Centre First and Sequential Approach  
 
Since the current LDP was adopted in 2016, Welsh Government has published 
Future Wales: The National Plan 20240 and PPW12, both of which clearly set out 
the Welsh Government’s commitment to a ‘town centre first’ principle with regard to 
locating new retail and leisure developments. National planning policy clearly states 

Tudalen23

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7241/spg_renewable_energy_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7243/spg_welsh_language_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9003/spg_biodiversity_geodiversity_may18.pdf


 

 

that significant uses affected by FW Policy 6, should apply the sequential test to 
demonstrate that the proposal cannot be accommodated in a town or city centre or a 
retail/commercial centre identified by the LPA. According to Welsh Government’s 
FAQs (which has been produced to assist interpretation of Future Wales) there is no 
definition of ‘significant’ in Future Wales and it is for the Local Planning Authority to 
determine this, based on their knowledge of their local area. 
 
Being a development of over 350m2 gross floorspace, it is considered that the 
application proposals for a new restaurant/take-away are significant within the 
context of the local area, with LDP Policy R3 only accepting out of centre proposals 
of 200m2 or less within the Valleys Strategy Area where a more flexible approach to 
out of centre proposals is taken.   
 
However, PPW 12 goes on to explain that whilst it is a first preference to locate new 
development within an existing retail and commercial centre [in accordance with FW 
Policy 6], that is not to say that edge of centre or out of centre locations cannot be 
brought forward. Developers are required to demonstrate that all potential retail and 
commercial centre options, and then edge-of-centre options, have been thoroughly 
assessed using a sequential approach with the added stipulation that any 
edge-of-centre or out-of-centre sites must be: 

- accessible by a choice of public and private modes of travel; and  
- not be of a scale, type or location that is likely to undermine the vibrancy, 

attractiveness and viability of those retail and commercial centres that would 
otherwise serve the community.   

 
To this end, the application is accompanied by a Planning/Supporting Statement that 
sets out the developer’s rationale for selecting the application site, which, for the 
purpose of application of the sequential approach, is defined as being an out of 
centre location.  The application site is 0.3ha in size which includes the drive-thru as 
well as the restaurant/store itself.  The developers have assessed the potential for a 
0.3ha site within Pontardawe Town Centre and found no sites large enough. They 
have also assessed the potential for a 0.3ha site on an edge of Town Centre and 
found that the only available edge of centre sites of this size are already allocated for 
other uses within the adopted LDP. There are other out of centre sites available that 
could accommodate a development of this size, however the whole premise of the 
sequential approach is to direct development into or close to existing centres and 
accordingly it makes little sense to ‘rank’ out of centre locations in terms of their 
effect on the vitality and viability of existing centres.  Provided they are accessible 
by a choice of modes of travel and not of a scale, type or location that would 
undermine those centres, each out of centre location is afforded similar weight in the 
sequential approach. 
 
It is important to consider relevant case law relating to the sequential approach. In 
2006, the courts held that it is not for the applicant to reduce or segregate their 
proposal so that it could be made to fit elsewhere stating: ‘The question is whether 
the alternative town centre site is suitable for the proposed development, not 
whether the proposed development can be altered or reduced so that it can be made 
to fit into the alternative site’ [Lidl UK GmbH v Scottish Ministers (2006)] 
 
It is therefore not for the applicant to adapt their proposal to fit a site, rather to 
consider other sites that are of a suitable size that accommodates the proposal. In 
2012, the courts confirmed that directing applicants to smaller town centre sites is 

Tudalen24



 

 

inappropriate, with the suitability being directed at the developers proposal, not some 
alternative scheme: ‘To refuse an out-of-centre planning consent on the grounds that 
an admittedly smaller site is available within the town may be to take an entirely 
inappropriate business decision on behalf of the developer’ [Tesco Stores Ltd v 
Dundee City Council (2012)] 
 
Subsequent appeals have referenced the Dundee case, confirming that it is for the 
proposed development as a whole to be considered (not an alternative form of that 
development), when looking at alternative sequential locations. In light of this, the 
proposal needs to be considered in context as a whole and cannot be segregated 
into smaller components even if, for example, a premise of 350m2 was available 
within or at the edge of Pontardawe Town Centre to accommodate a 
restaurant/take-away element. The proposal is for a drive-thru restaurant and the 
elements of eating in or driving thru cannot be segregated for the purposes of the 
sequential approach as to do so would constitute ‘an inappropriate business decision 
on behalf of the developer’ as per the Dundee case above. 
 
Retail/Economic Impact Assessment  
 
A number of third party comments have objected to the application on the basis it 
would undermine existing restaurant and take-away businesses that are located 
within Pontardawe Town Centre by taking custom away and thereby undermining the 
vitality and viability of the Town Centre itself. PPW12 only requires a retail impact 
assessment for developments in excess of 2500m2 and advises that, for smaller site 
allocations, planning authorities will need to determine whether an assessment is 
necessary.  Given that the drive-thru is an integral component of the development 
and there are no other sequentially preferable sites within the town centre that are 
large enough to accommodate the development, it is not considered that a retail 
impact assessment is necessary or justified, particularly given that the application 
has made positive improvements to facilitate access by pedestrians and cyclists, 
with the application site being well served by existing pedestrian infrastructure 
connecting the site to the town centre and wider surroundings.  Given its location 
between the existing Tesco store and petrol filling station, it is considered that the 
development has a high probability of attracting linked trips rather than being solely a 
new destination in its own right, and with good pedestrian/cycle path links is likely to 
be frequented by users already using those routes/connections, including to/from the 
town centre itself.  Being circa. 350m2 in size it is not considered that the 
development is of a scale or type that would undermine the vibrancy and 
attractiveness of Pontardawe Town Centre and the existing and proposed pedestrian 
connectivity in this location facilitates linked trips between them. Noting the 
responses provided, there is potential for this to retain spend within the local area, as 
presently there is no similar use within walking/ cycling distance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen25



 

 

SITE LOCATION RELATIVE TO PONTARDAWE TOWN CENTRE: 

 
 
Impact on the Amenity of the Area 
 
Visual Amenity 
 
The application site forms part of a quasi-retail park with modern, functional buildings 
designed for retail use. The proposed development is of modular construction, 
modern and mass-produced in its design and typical of other drive-thru 
developments. It does not, therefore, create an independent or distinct sense of 
‘place’, however it is considered to be entirely appropriate for the existing site 
context.  The application is accompanied by a detailed lighting plan and strategy 
and the development will be viewed within the context of an existing supermarket 
and 24 hour petrol filling station which, with its existing illumination and 
paraphernalia, is considered to be able to accommodate the proposals without 
detriment to the visual amenity of the wider area. The application is therefore 
considered to be in compliance with LDP Policy BE1 in this regard. 
 
PROPOSED ELEVATION PLANS: 

 

Tudalen26



 

 

 
Noise/Odour 
 
The application is accompanied by a detailed Noise Assessment and Odour 

Assessment. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has reviewed both reports 

and advised that they are comprehensive and will mitigate the potential adverse 

effects of locating this type of business in this location. The Environmental Health 

Officer advises that, based on the specification provided in the technical reports, 

there are no grounds for refusal of the application with regard to noise or odour.  

However the EHO also recommends that that the operating hours are kept in line 

with the quiet night-time hours of 23.00 to 07.00hrs to prevent any unnecessary 

disturbance from loitering vehicles, gathering groups, or loud car stereos and 

engine/exhaust systems, during those hours. To prevent people congregating 

in/outside the commercial unit itself, it is recommended that the restaurant be closed 

23.00-07.00 hours however given that the neighbouring petrol filling station operates 

24 hours a day (and the Tesco store itself has no opening hour restrictions) it is not 

considered reasonable or necessary to prevent access to the drive-thru element 

during these hours. This can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition. 

Subject to this requirement, the development is considered to be in accordance with 
LDP Policy EN8 and Pollution SPG. 
 
Litter 
 
The courts have held that the dropping of litter may be a material consideration in 
determining a planning application, even though there is other legislation available to 
control the problem. In practice, litter is rarely the only objection considered in 
relation to take-away proposals and in practice appeal inspectors will routinely take 
the question on board in their overall reasoning. It is often concluded on the facts of 
the case that there would be no significant litter problem as a result of the proposed 
use, or that any adverse amenity effect can be mitigated by a condition requiring the 
provision of litter bins and/or an agreement relating to regular external litter collection 
by an appellant company. The submitted application proposes both of these 

Tudalen27



 

 

solutions and therefore subject to conditions to control litter in this way, it is not 
considered that the development would adversely impact upon the amenity of the 
area in this regard.   
 
McDonalds is beginning to take steps to label its purchases so that the source of any 
discarded materials can be identified. Ultimately there are other, separate powers 
under the Environmental Protection Act to manage littering. 
 
Environmental Risk Factors 
 
Flood Risk 
 
The proposal is for less vulnerable development (a form of retail). NRW’s Flood Risk 
Map confirms the majority of the site to be within Zone A of the Development Advice 
Map (DAM) with a section of the existing supermarket access road within Zone C2. 
The Flood Map for Planning (FMfP) identifies the application site to be at risk of 
flooding and falls entirely into Flood Zone 2 Rivers. The submitted FCA 
demonstrates that the development remains flood free in the 1% Annual Exceedance 
Probability (AEP), 1% plus climate change (cc) AEP and the 0.1% AEP event. The 
proposed development is outside of the floodplain and as such it is not considered to 
increase flood risk elsewhere.  The risk of flooding to the existing access road is not 
made any worse as a consequence of the proposed development and accordingly 
there is no conflict with TAN 15 in this regard. NRW raise no objection to the 
application on flood-risk grounds.   
 
Drainage 
 
DCWW confirm that the public sewerage system is capable of accommodating the 
foul discharge flows from the development. The combined system is not capable of 
accommodating additional surface water discharge, however the proposed layout 
makes provision for disposal of this via a Sustainable Drainage (‘SuDs’) system 
which will require separate approval from the SAB authority. Subject to a condition to 
maintain the integrity of the combined public system, there is no objection to the 
proposal on drainage grounds. 
 
Contaminated Land/Past Coal Mining 
 
The planning application is accompanied by a Phase 1 Ground Conditions Desk 

Study Report which identifies key geo-environmental and geotechnical risk to the 

proposed development, including former industrial and coal mining activities and 

historical, geological and coal mining information from previous technical reports 

prepared for the development of the existing Tesco Store. The main risk to the 

proposed development is from three recorded coal mine entries (adits) and 

consideration as to whether these have been treated during the construction of the 

A4067, Tesco Superstore and car park. The planning application is also 

accompanied by a Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report however no intrusive 

investigation works for the mine adits have been undertaken. It is noted that the 

proposed site layout identifies a 3m stand off from the approximate line of the mine 

adit, of which the applicant has considered as part of the layout of this development. 

Further intrusive site investigations will need to be designed and undertaken by a 

Tudalen28



 

 

competent person to ensure that these are appropriate to establish the coal-mining 

legacy present and the risks it may pose to the development and inform any 

mitigation measures that may be necessary.  Permission for this is required from the 

Coal Authority Permit and Licensing Team. Subject to a condition requiring sign-off 

from a competent persons, no objection to the application is raised on the grounds of 

contamination, mining or other underground risk and the development is considered 

to be in accordance with LDP Policy EN8 and Pollution SPG in this regard. 

Impact on Highway and Pedestrian Safety 
 
Traffic/Congestion 
 
A significant number of third party objections have been received to the application 
on traffic/congestion grounds and the original submission contained insufficient 
evidence for the Council’s Highways Officer to conclude that there would not be an 
adverse impact on the surrounding highway network, particularly the roundabout on 
the A4067/A474 junction.  
 
The existing highway network around the application site was originally designed to 
cater for the traffic associated with the Tesco supermarket with a full car park. The 
existing Tesco car park (410 spaces) has historically been underused and is never 
occupied to its full capacity. This means that there is some spare highways capacity 
to accommodate the new restaurant development. In addition, a significant 
proportion of vehicular visits to the restaurant would be linked to existing trips (e.g. 
picking up some food on the way back from an existing shopping trip or need to 
refuel) and so would already be utilising the highway network and not be additional 
trips on the network. 
 
Traditional highways modelling is based on mathematical relationships between 
highway geometry, traffic flow, and capacity derived from large scale surveys of 
existing junctions. They are not designed to replicate closely spaced junctions and 
more complex layouts. As a result, more detailed modelling was requested which 
represents individual vehicles and the behaviour of their drivers. The model also 
includes a certain element of random variation to represent daily fluctuations in traffic 
movements and are run repeatedly to obtain statistically valid results in terms of 
journey times and queue lengths. 
 
The modelling that has been undertaken covers the whole area from the roundabout 
outside the Tesco car park, the A4067 roundabout and A474 roundabout. Modelling 
was carried out for the morning and evening peaks, as well as a Saturday lunch time 
peak. 
 
Journey Times 
 
Average journey times were gathered for a total of 20 routes through the model area. 
They were compared with and without the McDonalds visitors. The following 
increases were observed: 
 
AM Peak: 0 to 13 seconds depending on route, with an average increase of 5 
seconds. 
 
PM Peak: 0 to 4 seconds across all routes, with an average increase of 1 seconds 

Tudalen29



 

 

Saturday Midday Peak: 0 to 9 seconds across all routes, with an average increase of 
3 seconds. 
 
The highest increase in journey time was observed to occur in the morning peak, 
travelling from the A4067 (S) to A474 (W) (i.e. through both main roundabouts). This 
saw an increase from 1 minute 44 seconds to 1 minute 57 seconds - a 13 second 
increase. These increases in journey times are considered to be minor and unlikely 
to be noticed by most road users. 
 
Queue Lengths 
 
Average maximum queue lengths (in metres) were recorded for the all junction 
approaches. As above, they were compared with and without the McDonalds 
visitors. The following increases were observed: 
 
AM Peak: 0 to 9 metres depending on approach, with an average increase of 1.9 
metres 
AM Peak: 0 to 3 metres depending on approach, with an average increase of 0.8 
metres 
AM Peak: 0 to 3 metres depending on approach, with an average increase of 0.9 
metres 
 
These average increases are all less than one car in length, and considered unlikely 
to be noticeable to most road users. The largest increase in queue length observed 
was on the A4067 south (9 metres), which is equivalent to less than 2 car lengths. 
Again, this is considered to be minor and unlikely to be noticed by most road users. 
 
In summary, the additional modelling work identified that the impact of the 
development would be minimal and that there would be no significant adverse 
effects on the operation of the local highway network. The Councils’ Highways 
Officer has retracted their recommendation for refusal and raise no objection to the 
application, subject to a number of conditions. 
 
Parking and Active Travel 
 
The proposed site layout has been updated and amended following extensive 
discussions with NPT officers in order to ensure that it complies with parking 
standards and Active Travel Guidance in terms of accessibility and provision for 
active travel, both pedestrian and cyclist. This includes a full review of path widths, 
crossing provision, cycle storage and accessible parking layout, electric vehicle 
charging space, ramp widths and gradients. The revised layout is considered to meet 
the appropriate guidance and is now considered to be acceptable, subject to a 
condition to control the vegetative growth that is impeding visibility at the existing 
pedestrian crossing points. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen30



 

 

SITE LOCATION RELATIVE TO ACTIVE TRAVEL INTEGRATED NETWORK MAP: 
 

 

 
 
Deliveries 
 
All refuse collection and most deliveries will take place from within the restaurant car 
park, with spaces cordoned off as required for the vehicle (up to a 10m rigid). Larger 
vehicles may be required on a less-frequent basis (including articulated lorries) 
which would deliver mainly when the store is closed to customers. When these visit, 
they can use the redundant bus layby directly outside the site. This is set out in the 
submitted Service Management Plan and will require an amended Traffic Regulation 

Tudalen31



 

 

Order (‘TRO’). The Council’s Highways Officer raises no objection to this proposed 
arrangement. 
 
Accordingly the development is considered to have an acceptable impact on 
highway and pedestrian safety and complies with LDP Policy TR2 in this regard. 
 
Biodiversity / Ecology 
 
As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will be of 
relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on biodiversity/ natural 
features are appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated.   
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 12 sets out that the quality of the built environment 
should be enhanced by integrating green infrastructure into development through 
appropriate site selection and use of creative design. With careful planning and 
design, informed by an appropriate level of assessment, green infrastructure can 
embed the benefits of biodiversity and ecosystem services into new development 
and places, help to overcome the potential for conflicting objectives, and contribute 
to health and well-being outcomes.  
 
The site is considered to have limited ecological benefit, given it forms an existing 
car park. A detailed ecological enhancement plan has been provided which aligns 
with the proposed landscape plan, which shows significant enhancement to on-site 
biodiversity. A separate Green Infrastructure Plan has not been requested, given that 
the application was submitted some 12 months prior to the introduction of the new 
policy and has already demonstrated biodiversity net gain, with the proposals 
providing for new soft landscaping features, including a rain garden and wildflower 
planting.  The proposal is considered to accord with the requirements of Future 
Wales Policy 9 in this regard.  The Council’s Ecologist raises no objection to the 
application/proposals subject to delivery of the ecological enhancement measures as 
stipulated. 
 
Economic Development/Welsh Language 
 
According to information submitted with the application’s supporting statement, 
McDonald’s contributed £5.95 million to the economy in Neath Port Talbot. Of this 
total, 85% is associated with the value of the meals sold in restaurants and the 
remaining 15% is the value of expenditure with suppliers and driven by the multiplier 
effect of employees in their company-owned and franchised restaurants, and 
employees supported by the supply chain, spending their wages in the local 
economy. Since 2017, McDonald’s has supported 440 jobs across Neath Port 
Talbot; 379 in their restaurants and 61 in the supply chain and in the wider economy.  
 
The proposed restaurant is expected to employ more than 120 full and part time 
staff, which McDonald’s seeks to recruit from the local area. A significant number of 
third party representations received are in support of the application for this reason.  
 
From a land-use planning perspective, TAN 23 states (in its opening statement at 
para.1.1.1) that ‘in determining planning applications, local planning authorities need 
to bear in mind that traditional business use classes B1-B8, only account for part of 
the activity in the economy. It is important that the planning system recognises the 
economic aspects of all development and that planning decisions are made in a 

Tudalen32



 

 

sustainable way which balance social, environmental and economic considerations’. 
It goes on to state (at para.2.1.2) that ‘where economic development would cause 
environmental or social harm which cannot be fully mitigated, careful consideration 
of the economic benefits will be necessary. There will of course be occasions when 
social and environmental considerations will outweigh economic benefit. The 
decision in each case will depend on the specific circumstances and the planning 
authority’s priorities.’ 
 
This implies that economic benefit alone should not be a determining factor in 
land-use planning decisions and it is essential that the local planning authority 
carefully considers the social and environmental considerations of the development 
(as outline in preceding paragraphs of this report) as well as any economic benefit. 
 
The proposed McDonalds development benefits from advertisement consent for new 
bi-lingual signage on/around the restaurant and drive-thru. It is further considered 
that the proposed development offers the opportunity for retention and enhancement 
of local employment opportunities, which in turn will help retain local Welsh speakers 
in the area, thereby supporting and sustaining the economic and social viability of 
local facilities and services, including Welsh language and culture. It is therefore 
considered that the proposed development will not adversely impact upon the 
linguistic character of the Pontardawe community. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
Responses to matters raised in representations not covered in the report on the main 
issues. 
 
As identified earlier in this report, a number of objections were received in response 
following the publicity exercise. In response to the main issues raised which have not 
been addressed elsewhere in this report, the following comments are made: 
 

Proximity to Schools 

 A number of other Local Planning Authorities have planning policies in their 
development plan which seek to prevent the introduction of fast-food outlets 
within 400m of any school or college. The reason(s) include not wanting to 
encourage children to easily frequent such establishments and/or as part of a 
wider anti-obesity strategy. These planning policies have had varying degrees 
of success at appeal, being considered on an individual case-by-case basis 
and depending upon the evidence presented. Neath Port Talbot CBC does 
not have such a development plan policy and therefore it would not be in 
accordance with the LDP to refuse the application on this basis. 
 
Anti-social Behaviour 

 A concern has been raised relating to antisocial behaviour associated with 
youths congregating using the new McDonalds store as a meeting point and 
catalyst for antisocial behaviour, particularly late at night. It is clear from a 
review of planning appeal decisions that over the years that there has been 
disparity of approach to the materiality of this form of consideration. Some 
planning inspectors define land use planning considerations very tightly and 
refuse to be drawn into any extended hypothesising about whether others 
would break the law should a use be permitted. Others afford the fear of 
anti-social behaviour/criminality as a legitimate material consideration when 

Tudalen33



 

 

assessing land-use planning applications for new establishments, including 
take-away food premises. However, as described above, this can be mitigated 
by limiting restaurant trading hours for customers to between 07:00 and 23:00 
daily, as well as more pro-active measures as set out in the proposed 
business’ site management and delivery plan, including use of CCTV and 
conflict avoidance training for managers which can be secured by condition. 

 
Section 106 Planning Obligations 
 
Local Development Plan Policy SP 4 (Infrastructure) states that “Developments will 
be expected to make efficient use of existing infrastructure and where required make 
adequate provision for new infrastructure, ensuring that there are no detrimental 
effects on the area and community. Where necessary, Planning Obligations will be 
sought to ensure that the effects of developments are fully addressed in order to 
make the development acceptable”. 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 came into force on 6th April 
2010 in England and Wales. They introduced limitations on the use of planning 
obligations (Reg. 122 refers). As of 6th April 2010, a planning obligation may only 
legally constitute a reason for granting planning permission if it is:  
 
(a)  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  
(b)  directly related to the development; and  
(c)  fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  
 
In view of the type and form of development proposed in this location, having regard 
to local circumstances and needs arising from the development, no planning 
obligations are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms and to meet the policy and legislative tests for planning obligations. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 
Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, 
in determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath 
Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 
 
It is considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development that 
would have no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the area, highway and 
pedestrian safety and biodiversity considerations. Accordingly, the proposed 
development is in accordance with Policies SC1, EN8, TR2, BE1 and WL1 of the 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National 
Plan 2040 and the Council’s well-being objectives and the sustainable development 
principle in accordance with the requirements of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
Recommendation - Approved 
 

Tudalen34



 

 

Conditions:-  
 
Time Limit Conditions 
 
 1 The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this 

decision.  
  
 Reason:  
 To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
List of Approved Plans 
 
 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents:  
  
 6682-SA-1744-AL01C Site Location Plan 

PNT-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-1200 - Existing Site Plan P01 
6682-SA-1744-AL03B Site Layout Plan - As Existing 
6682-SA-1744-P002N Block Plan (NG100) 
6682-SA-1744-P004N Site Layout Plan - As Proposed (NG100) 
18634-VL-MCD- L01G - Landscape Plan 
18634-VL-MCD- L02G - Landscape Plan 
18634-VL-MCD- L03G - Landscape Plan 
6682-SA-1744-P005B Building Elevations and Section (NG100) 
6682-SA-1744-P006B GA and Roof Plan (NG100) 
Delivery and servicing management plan  
15297-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-0001-P04-S4 
Technical Design Transport Note:15297-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-1004_P01 
6682-SA-1744-SK30 Site Layout Plan showing Comparable Pedestrian Travel 
Distances as Proposed 
15297-HYD-XX-XX-M2-TP-0303 Large Refuse Vehicle Entry 
15297-HYD-XX-XX-M2-TP-0304 Large Refuse Vehicle Exit 
15297-HYD-XX-XX-M2-TP-0307 Car Park Tracking 
Transport Note 15297-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-1002 (25 September 2023) 
Model Development and Forecasting Report 
15297-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-8002_P01 (25 September 2023) 
15297-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-3002-P01 Model Scoping Report  
15297-HYD-XX-XX-DR-TP-0003-P02 Pedestrian Visibility Splays 
Supporting Statement v3 - Sept 2023 
D-534355 - Lighting Design & Schedule 
Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
Flood Consequences Assessment 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 
Phase 1 Ground Conditions Desk Study 
Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report 
Odour Control Assessment 
Noise Assessment 
Travel Plan 
PNT-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2100 - Proposed Engineering Strategy 
PNT-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2200 - Proposed Drainage Strategy 
Drainage Strategy Report 

Tudalen35



 

 

Goal Post and McDigit COD Canopy 
Standard Patio Area Supporting Specifications 
E11-003 Play Frame 

  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of clarity. 
 
Pre-Commencement Conditions 
 
 3 Notwithstanding the submitted CEMP document, no development shall 

commence (including any site clearance), until an amended Construction 
Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved CEMP shall be adhered 
to throughout the construction phases. The CEMP shall provide for:  

  
 a. Construction methods: details of the extent and phasing of development; 

details for the storage and management of plant and materials used in 
constructing the development; 

 b. Drainage: Details of drainage measures during construction phases to 
ensure that the drainage of any adjoining land, and land downstream is not 
interrupted or otherwise adversely affected by the development; 

 c. General Site Management:  
 i. details of the construction programme including timetable 
 ii. details of site clearance 
 iii. details for erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing 
 d. Control of Nuisances: Wheel washing facilities and measures to control light 

spill onto the public highway;  
 e. Traffic Management:  
 i. details of site deliveries including routes of vehicles, plus delivery and 

construction times, taking into account the proximity of the safe routes to 
school; no deliveries in excess of 3.5 tonnes shall access or leave the site via 
any route during the hours of 8am to 9.30am and 2.30pm to 4pm during school 
term times 

 ii. details for the loading and unloading of plant and materials; details for the 
parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 

 iii. scheme for the erection of temporary/semi-temporary signage 
 iv. the frequency and size of vehicles used to transport the waste material 

arising from the construction works; 
 f. Hours of working on site, including specified hours for deliveries; details of 

restrictions to be applied during construction and demolition works (including 
timing, duration and frequency of works) to prevent noise or nuisance amenity 
issues to surrounding properties; and 

 g. Responsible Persons: details of the persons and bodies responsible for 
activities associated with the CEMP and emergency contact details, the CEMP 
must also be signed by the responsible person.  

  
 Reason:  
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, the environment, and the 

amenity of residents, and to ensure accordance with Policies BE1 and TR2 of 
the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 

Tudalen36



 

 

 4 Prior to the commencement of any works on site, a temporary traffic 
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority detailing the temporary traffic arrangements within the site 
during the construction phase of the development. This shall include details and 
measures on how traffic trips for both pedestrian and vehicles will be managed 
through the site during the course of construction. The approved temporary 
traffic management plan shall be adhered to during the course of construction.   

  
 Reason:  
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, and to ensure accordance with 

Policies BE1 and TR2 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan. 

 
 5 Prior to commencement of any works, a traffic speed survey shall be 

undertaken to establish the visibility requirements in accordance with drawing 
no. 15297-HYD-XX-XX-DR-TP-0003-P02 Pedestrian Visibility Splays hereby 
approved and the vegetation obstructing the existing pedestrian crossing point 
at the site entrance from the footbridge at Tan Yr Allt shall be cut back to 
ensure full compliance with the approved plan and Table 9.2 of the Active 
Travel Act Guidance and thereafter maintained as such.  

  
 Reason:  
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, and to ensure accordance with 

Policies BE1 and TR2 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan. 

 
Action Conditions 
 
 6 Prior to the first beneficial use of the new commercial unit, the highway 

improvement works as annotated on the approved drawings titled 'Site Layout 
Plan As Proposed' drawing No: 6682-SA-1744-P0004 Rev N and 'Site 
Feasibility Layout' drawing no: 6682-SA-1744-SK32 Rev E, and which includes 
the widening of the footways shall be completed in its entirety and retained as 
such thereafter. 

  
 Reason:  
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, and to ensure accordance with 

Policies BE1 and TR2 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan. 

 
 7 Prior to the first beneficial use of the new commercial unit all highway 

directional signage, lining and markings and alterations to the existing retail 
store car parking layout shall be implemented in its entirety in accordance with 
the drawing titled 'Tesco Site Plan' Drawing No: 6682-SA-1744-P002 Rev N 
hereby approved and retained as such thereafter.  

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 

Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
 8 Unless a variation is otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority, the development shall be carried out strictly in full compliance with 

Tudalen37



 

 

the Delivery & Servicing Management Plan 15197-HYD-XX-XX-RP-TP-0001 
dated 5th April 2024 hereby approved in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 

Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
 9 Prior to first beneficial use of the new commercial unit, the internal car parking 

scheme shall be completed in accordance with the layout shown on drawing 
titled 'Site Layout Plan As Proposed' drawing No: 6682-SA-1744-P0004 Rev N 
and retained free and open for such use thereafter. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 

Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
10 All works to be constructed on the public highway shall be subject to Road 

safety Audits, stages 1 to 4 in accordance with GG 119 of the Design Manual 
for Roads and Bridges. Each stage of the Road safety Audit shall be submitted 
for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All issues highlighted at 
each stage, being addressed to the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority within 3 months of that stage of that Road safety Audit has been 
approved. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 

Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
11 The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until the facilities for 

the secure parking and storage of cycles have been provided in accordance 
with the approved plans, such facilities shall thereafter be retained as approved 
at all times. 

  
 Reason:   
 To encourage active travel, in the interests of highway safety and to ensure the 

development complies with Policies BE1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan 

 
12 The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until litter/recycling 

bins have been provided around the application site in accordance with details 
which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and which shall include arrangements for emptying and 
disposal. The litter/recycling bins and emptying/disposal arrangements shall 
thereafter be retained as approved in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interests of amenity and to ensure the development complies with 

Policies BE1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
13 The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until the proposed 

ecological enhancements have been provided on the site in accordance with 

Tudalen38



 

 

the 'Biodiversity Enhancement Plan' and plans hereby approved. These shall 
be retained as part of the development in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of biodiversity and to accord with Policy 9 of Future Wales: The 

National Development Plan 2040 and Policy SP15 of the Adopted Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
14 Prior to the first beneficial use of the commercial unit hereby approved, a 

landscaping management plan, including management responsibilities and 
maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas, shall have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscape 
management plan shall be implemented and adhered to in accordance with the 
approved details thereafter in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of visual amenity, and to ensure the long term management and 

maintenance of all landscaped areas and to ensure the development complies 
with Policies SP15 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
15 All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the 
occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is 
the sooner; and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species. 

  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of maintaining a suitable scheme of landscaping to protect the 

visual amenity of the area, to maintain the special qualities of the landscape 
and habitats through the protection, creation and enhancement of links 
between sites and their protection for amenity, landscape and biodiversity 
value, and to ensure the development complies with Policies SP15 and BE1 of 
the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
16 No part of the development shall be brought into beneficial use until gigabit 

capable broadband infrastructure from the site boundary to the new commercial 
unit hereby permitted has been provided on site in accordance with details 
which have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to installation.  Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  

  
 Reason: 
 To support the roll-out of digital communications infrastructure across Wales in 

accordance with Policy 13 of Future Wales. 
 
17 Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, 

a signed statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person 
confirming that the site is, or has been made, safe and stable from past coal 
mining activity for the approved development shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing.  This document shall confirm the 

Tudalen39



 

 

methods and findings of any intrusive site investigations that may have been 
required and the completion of any remedial works and/or mitigation necessary 
to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity.      

  
 Reason: 
 To ensure that the assessment of the risk from past coal mining activity to the 

future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems is satisfactory, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 
and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
18 If, during the course of the development, contamination not previously identified 

is found to be present at the site, then no further development (unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be carried out 
as approved. 

  
 Reason:  
 To ensure the risks associated with previously unsuspected contamination at 

the site are dealt with through a remediation strategy, to minimise the risk to 
both future users of the land and neighbouring land, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks. 

 
19 No surface water and/or land drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or 

indirectly with the public sewerage network.   
  
 Reason:  
 To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the 

health and safety of existing residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to 
the environment.  

 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
20 The restaurant dining area shall not be open, and customers are not permitted 

inside the building premises, outside the business trading hours of 07:00-23:00 
Monday to Sunday. 

  
 Reason:   
 In the interest of residential amenity and to ensure the development complies 

with Policy BE1 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan 
                                                                                                                      
 
 

Tudalen40



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS DETERMINED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0022 Planning Ref: P2022/0966 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02844-V2X8H8 
 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Tom & Montanna Roberts 
 

Proposal: Creation of one gypsy pitch with one residential 
static unit, touring caravan, a utility/day room and 
boundary fencing (partly retrospective) 

 

Site Address: No 1 Ponderosa  Church Street Briton Ferry 
Neath SA11 2HZ   

 
Appeal Method: Hearing  
 
Decision Date: 11 July 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0004 Planning Ref: E2022/0018 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02742-P8M5J4 
 
Applicant: Robert Thomas 
 

Alleged Breach: Appeal against the unauthorised change of use 
from a garage to an office with internal and 
external storage (including commercial waste) 
and laundry facility used in association with 
property cleaning and maintenance business. 

Tudalen41

Eitem yr Agenda6



 

Site Address: Sparkles Solutions Main Road Crynant Neath 
Neath Port Talbot SA10 8PF  

 
Start Date: 1 February 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 8 July 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Tudalen42



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS RECEIVED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0007 Planning Ref: E2023/0104 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03448-M1S1T6 
 
Applicant: Adele Denise Reynolds 
 

Alleged Breach: Appeal against 

 

Site Address: Land Off Wern Ddu Road Alltwen Pontardawe 
Swansea Neath Port Talbot SA8 3JG  

 
Start Date: 11 July 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen43

Eitem yr Agenda7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 13 MAY 2024 AND 15 JULY 2024 
 

App No:  P2021/1229 

Proposal: Change of use of grass verge to be used for storage 
area in association with Unit 43 and provision of hard-
standing area 

Location: Unit 43  Endeavour Close Industrial Estate  Endeavour 
Close  Sandfields  Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2022/0153 

Proposal: 3 fascia signs 
Location: 280 Margam Road  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 2DB   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0574 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(parking and amenity space) of permission P2018/0472 
granted on 11.07.2018 

Location: 58 Neath Road  Briton Ferry  SA11 2YR       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2022/0785 

Proposal: Change of use from a single-storey dwelling to that of 
two self-contained one bedroom units 

Location: Former Pontrhydyfen Primary School   Oakwood 
Avenue   Pontrhydyfen  SA12 9SZ     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2022/1052 

Tudalen45

Eitem yr Agenda8



Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(construction noise and vibration management plan) of 
permission P2020/1056 granted on 15.01.2020 

Location: 68 High Street  Glynneath  SA11 5DA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0559 

Proposal: Application to vary condition 2 of application 
DNS/3213662_DNS granted on 28/09/2022, to amend 
the approved plans to increase the rotor diameter of 
the wind turbines from 105m to 117m (with the overall 
maximum height of the turbines remaining unchanged). 

Location: Upper Ogmore Wind Farm  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
3YE       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwynfi & Croeserw 

 

App No:  P2023/0563 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of shop roof space (Use Class 
A1) to No.1 x 2 bedroom and No.1 x 3 bedroom 
apartments (Use Class C3) together with external 
alterations to include the addition of dormer windows, 
recessed balconies, doorways and windows. 

Location: Village Discount Stores  South Avenue  Croeserw  
Cymmer  Port Talbot   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0630 

Proposal: Section 73 application to amend the wording of 
condition 1 (time limit) of planning permission 
P2017/0322 approved on the 20/08/2018 to extend the 
date of commencement works on site. 

Location: Varteg Row  Bryn  Port Talbot  SA13 2RF     
Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0708 

Tudalen46



Proposal: Change of use of former gym building to form a small 
scale cider processing unit (B2 use). 

Location: Existing Unit To The Rear Of Cwmafan Football Club   
Heol Undeb  Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9DN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0732 

Proposal: Consolidation and repair works to Gnoll House ruins 
and creation of education interpretation centre in Gnoll 
House cellars 

Location: Gnoll House And Cellar Remains  Gnoll Estate Country 
Park  Fairyland  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0789 

Proposal: Creation of new visitor accommodation comprising the 
reinstatement and landscaping of former kitchen 
gardens, reconstruction of former potting sheds to 
provide a new office/reception and 2 no. self-catering 
holiday units, construction of 14 no. new holiday 
cabins, a welfare/laundry building, replacement 
workshop/machinery store and new parking area within 
pumphouse service yard 

Location: Gnoll Estate Country Park   Fairyland  Neath  SA11 
3BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath NorthNeath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0799 

Proposal: Retrospective application for two-storey outbuilding 
(ground floor storage space and first floor childrens 
play den) 

Location: 33 Cwrt Y Clafdy  Skewen  SA10 6TR       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2023/0879 

Tudalen47



Proposal: Proposed side and rear wrap around dormer extension 
adjoining existing dormer on side elevation. 

Location: 91 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  SA10 6DY       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0898 

Proposal: Proposed rear extension to existing portal building 
Location: 29A Kenfig Industrial Estate Road  Margam  SA13 2PE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0922 

Proposal: Change of use of a residential dwelling (C3 use class) 
to a 5 bedroom HMO (C4 use class) 

Location: 116 Old Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 8LL   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0958 

Proposal: Demolition of the existing dwellinghouse and the 
development of a replacement dwellinghouse, with new 
vehicular access. 

Location: 7 Ten Acre Wood  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 2SU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0035 

Proposal: Change of use of field to domestic curtilage in order to 
facilitate the construction of a detached self-contained 
residential annex with domestic workshop and store, 
means of enclosure, together with turning 
area/courtyard all for use ancillary to no. 1 Neath Road 
Fforest Goch 

Location: 1 Neath Road  Fforest Goch  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Refused 

Tudalen48



Ward: Rhos 
 

App No:  P2024/0047 

Proposal: Change of use (retention) of garage to form cider 
storage unit (use class B8). 

Location: Windways   50 Afan Road  Duffryn Rhondda  SA13 
3ES     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2024/0060 

Proposal: Outfall pipe, flap valve, safety grill, headwall and 
associated development including steps, re-positioning 
of boulders, ground works including excavation of bank 
and re-profiling of slopes, handrails and gate all in 
connection with Trebanos Wastewater Treatment Work 

Location: Land To The South West Of Trebanos Wastewater 
Treatment Works, Trebanos, Neath Port Talbot 
(Easting: 270961,  Northing: 202127)           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2024/0085 

Proposal: Construction of a new training pitch with an artificial 
playing surface including new floodlighting, fencing and 
2no containers. 

Location: Ynys Park   Cwmavon Road  Cwmavon  SA12 9DQ     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And CwmavonBryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0091 

Proposal: Proposed conversion of first floor 1 bed flat at 49 
Station Road into 1 no. three bedroom HMO (use class 
C4) and proposed conversion of first floor storage 
space at 51 Station Road into 1 no. three bedroom 
HMO (use class C4), both accessed from one staircase 
located within 49 Station Road, with both HMO's 
serviced by communal parking spaces, cycle storage 
and bin storage located to the rear of both properties. 

Tudalen49



Location: 49 And 51 Station Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1NW       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0097 

Proposal: Proposed re-cladding of existing steel and blockwork 
skeleton frame commercial garage building, including 
new roller shutter access doors and translucent roof 
panels 

Location: 147 Heol Cae Gurwen  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  SA18 
1PD       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0100 

Proposal: Demolish small existing dormer and construct 2 no. full 
length dormers and a porch to side elevation outside 
main entrance (amended plans). 

Location: 11 Osprey Close  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7EP   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch SouthBryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2024/0105 

Proposal: Proposed dormer extension with an addition of two 
velux roof windows within the exisitng roof plane 
(amended description and plans) 

Location: 14 Church Close  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7TF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2024/0111 

Proposal: Replacement of an existing illuminated 48-sheet 
advertisement display with an illuminated 48-sheet 
digital advertisement display 

Location: 1 James St  Pontardawe  Swansea   SA8 4LR     
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Pontardawe 

Tudalen50



 

App No:  P2024/0120 

Proposal: Detached portal frame building to existing storage area 
to secure plant equipment and stock 

Location: Groundhog Uk Ltd   Ynysygerwn Avenue  Aberdulais  
SA10 8HH     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2024/0129 

Proposal: Proposed extensions to existing car park and 
construction of new facilities building and associated 
works. 

Location: Gnoll Estate Country Park   Fairyland  Neath  SA11 
3BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0130 

Proposal: Proposed erection of 4no. EV charging points and 
associated substation/transformer enclosure 

Location: Car Park At Resolven Market   Resolven  SA11 4SR       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0141 

Proposal: Application under section 73 to vary conditions 2 (time 
limit for submission of reserved matters) and 3 (time 
limit for commencement of development) of planning 
permission P2021/0395 (approved 24/05/2021) for 
outline planning permission (including access, layout 
and scale) for the construction of two number semi-
detached houses with parking and associated works. 

Location: 14 Old Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 8TT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

Tudalen51



App No:  P2024/0142 

Proposal: Discharge of Conditions 4 (contaminated land 
assessment), 5 (contaminated land remediation 
scheme) and 10 (construction environmental 
management plan / construction method statement) of 
planning permission P2022/1063 for the Development 
for 43no. affordable dwellings and associated works 
including a new access, an internal road network, 
landscaping, sustainable drainage, car, cycle parking 
and partial demolition of school. 

Location: Former Dyffryn Lower School   Talcennau Road  Port 
Talbot  SA13 1EP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0143 

Proposal: Demolish single storey flat roof extension and replace 
with 3 storey extension to rear elevation. 

Location: 21 Margam Street  Cymmer  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 3ED   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2024/0144 

Proposal: Proposed construction of 1 No. detached dwelling and 
associated works 

Location: Land Adjacent To  100 Brookfield  Neath Abbey  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: DyffrynDyffryn 

 

App No:  P2024/0146 

Proposal: Use of land to side of dwelling as a domestic garden, 
being part of the extended residential curtilage 6 
Prettyman Drive (Lawful Development Certificate 
Existing Use) 

Location: 6 Pretyman Drive  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6HZ   

Decision: Not Issue Certificate 

Tudalen52



Ward: Coedffranc West 
 

App No:  P2024/0156 

Proposal: Flood lighting to sports pitch 
Location: Onllwyn Recreational Ground  Wembley Avenue  

Onllwyn  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward:  

 

App No:  P2024/0159 

Proposal: Works to x1 Yew tree protected under Tree 
Preservation Order T238: 
-Remove the tree down to its base and the stump 
grinded out. 

Location: 19 St Catherines Court  Baglan  SA12 8AJ       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0167 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 46 Old Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  

SA12 8TT   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0170 

Proposal: Single storey extension with canopy and associated 
works providing a classroom, toilets, meeting room, 
office and store. 

Location: Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Dur  Seaway Parade  Sandfields  
Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0173 

Proposal: Change of use from C3 dwelling house to C4 small 
house of multiple occupation. 

Tudalen53



Location: 16 Cwrt Ucha Terrace  Talbot Road  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 1LD   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0179 

Proposal: Proposed detached garage with associated steps and 
railings to provide raised platform and the removal of 
existing steps and boundary fencing. 

Location: Dakota House   Pentwyn Baglan Road  Baglan  SA12 
8AH     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0184 

Proposal: Request for Screening Opinion under Regulation 6 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environment Impact 
Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 for upgrading 
and extension of the existing Trebanos Waste Water 
Treatment Works including construction of treatment 
access road, plant, machinery, storage tanks, 
hardstanding and associated development 

Location: Sewage Treatment Works Near  Ynysymond Uchaf 
Farm  Lane From Glais Road Alltwen To Ynysymond 
Uchaf Farm  Glais  Swansea   

Decision: Not EIA Development 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2024/0185 

Proposal: Proposed community hub within the school grounds to 
provide a cafe, office and classroom, with viewing deck 
to rear and relocation of gates and fencing. 

Location: Ysgol Cwm Brombil   Bertha Road  Margam  SA13 
2AN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0187 

Tudalen54



Proposal: Reserved matters application for 6 dwellings including 
details in respect of reserved matters conditions 1 
(layout, scale, appearance, access and landscaping), 4 
(landscaping), 5 (finished floor, ground and ridge 
levels), 6 (intrusive site investigations), 8 (lighting 
scheme), 9 (materials), 10 (retaining wall details), 12 
(contamination assessment), 14 (means of enclosure) 
and 15 (contamination remediation) pursuant to outline 
planning permission P2023/0646 (previous outline 
application number P2017/0025)   approved on 
14/03/2024 

Location: Land At Main Road   Dyffryn Cellwen  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA10 9HT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0191 

Proposal: Proposed first floor rear extension with flat roof 
Location: 9 Cambrian Place  Port Talbot  SA13 1HD       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0199 

Proposal: 4 sign free standing sign boards - post mounted with 
text & graphics to the front. Powder coated black to the 
back. 

Location: Roundabout At Baglan Moors - Near Lidl And 
Morrisons Stores - On Village Rd/Christchurch Rd           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0201 

Proposal: Discharge of condition application to agree condition 3 
(method statement) of planning application P2023/0779 
approved on 16.01.2024. 

Location: Margam Crematorium  Longland Lane  Margam  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

Tudalen55



App No:  P2024/0202 

Proposal: Variation to condition 1 (time limit) of P2022/1048 
approved on 30/3/23 so that permission shall expire 
after a period of 48 months from the date of that 
permission. 

Location: Cefn Gwrgan Road  Port Talbot  SA13 2BZ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0205 

Proposal: Retention and construction of perimeter fencing and 
access gates. 

Location: Port Talbot Steelworks   Grange Road  Margam  SA13 
2NG     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0206 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 3 (drainage scheme), 4 
(construction method statement) and 7 (construction 
details) of planning permission P2023/0233 for 
residential development of up to six dwellings and 
associated works. 

Location: Harvey Crescent  Aberavon  Port Talbot  SA12 6DF     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0207 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 8 (contaminated land 
remediation strategy) of planning permission 
P2023/0233 for residential development of up to six 
dwellings and associated works. 

Location: Harvey Crescent  Aberavon  Port Talbot  SA12 6DF     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0210 

Tudalen56



Proposal: Non Material Amendment to install PV Solar Panels 
onto the roof of selected plots (Plots 3-24 and 38-43) 
approved by planning permission P2021/0226 for the 
Construction of 137 dwellings and associated, roads, 
parking, landscaping and infrastructure. 

Location: Land at the Former Afan Lido Site and Car Park  
Aberavon Seafront   Neath Port Talbot       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0215 

Proposal: Works to x2 Oak trees covered by tree preservation 
order T350:  
Cut back overhanging branches on both trees by 
approximately 2m (Amended description).  
 

Location: 68 Priory Court  Bryncoch  SA10 7RZ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2024/0218 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 4 (hard and soft landscaping), 
5 (phase 1 ground investigation report), 6 (remediation 
strategy), 7 (gigabit capable infrastructure) and 8 
(CEMP) of planning permission P2022/0902 dated 
14.11.23 (erection of 5 bungalows and associated 
works) 

Location: Land At The Junction Of Dulais Road And Nant Y Cafn 
Business Park, Seven Sisters, Neath, Neath Port 
Talbot, SA10 9EY           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0220 

Proposal: First floor side extension 
Location: 29 Henshaw Street  Aberavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA12 6NH   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

Tudalen57



App No:  P2024/0221 

Proposal: Proposed two storey side extension and single storey 
rear extension 

Location: 41 Wern Road  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA13 2BB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0222 

Proposal: Rear ground floor bedroom extension 
Location: 24 Ynys Fawr Avenue  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA11 4LT   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0225 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 of 
listed building application (plaque fixing details) of 
P2024/0087 granted on 14/03/2024 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Ganol Bridge  Bridge 8   Swansea Canal  
Ynysmeudwy  Swansea    

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0226 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(plaque fixing details) of listed building application 
P2024/0088 granted on 14/03/2024 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Isaf Bridge   Swansea Canal  
Pontardawe  SA8 4PX     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0227 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(plaque fixing details) of listed building application 
P2024/0089 granted on 14/03/2024 

Tudalen58



Location: Ynysmeudwy Uchaf Bridge    Swansea Canal  
Ynysmeudwy  Swansea  SA8 4BW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0235 

Proposal: Section 73 application for the variation of condition 2 
(List of Approved Plans) of planning permission 
P2023/0317 (Proposed ground floor and lower ground 
floor rear extensions,  replacement raised patio, steps, 
alterations of main roof of dwelling from hip to gable, 
rear dormer  and new window to loft stairs in side 
elevation of main dwelling house) approved on 26/6/23 
to allow an increase in the size of the rear dormer. 

Location: 31 Pentwyn Baglan Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 8EA   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0244 

Proposal: Retrospective installation of 1x media charger with 
screen and 1x fast charger 

Location: Tesco Supermarket   A4067 From Glais To 
Pontardawe  Alltwen  Pontardawe  SA8 3AZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0246 

Proposal: Non-material Amendment, pursuant of planning 
permission Ref: P2021/0327, seeking to alter planning 
conditions 2 and 3 of that planning permission.  The 
proposed amendments are to revise the wording of the 
conditions to read: 
Condition 2  
 An application for approval of the first reserved matters 
shall be made to the Local Planning Authority not later 
than three years from the date of this permission. 
Condition 3 
The development shall begin before the expiration of 
five years from the date of this permission 

Tudalen59



Location: Land at and surrounding the Nant Helen Surface Mine 
site, Powys and Onllwyn Distribution Centre, Neath 
Port Talbot           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0247 

Proposal: Change of use of land to incorporate into domestic 
garden with the erection of a 1.4m high enclosure. 

Location: 74 Southdown View  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 7AN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0248 

Proposal: Refurbishment of existing Town Hall Foyer with a 
change of front entrance doorways and fenestration 
alterations. 

Location: Glynneath Town Hall   Heathfield Avenue  Glynneath  
SA11 5AH     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0251 

Proposal: Installation of a 20m high M-Range V2 lattice tower 
with 6 no. antennas, 1 no. 300mm transmission dish, 3 
no. equipment cabinets, 1 no. meter cabinet and 
ancillary development. 

Location: Bryngurnos Farm  Neath Road  Bryn  SA13 2RR     
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0256 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness (Proposed Development) for 
the adaptation of the existing ground floor to provide 
five bedrooms, a laundry room and a communal 
seating/check-in area. Certificate is sought to confirm 
this will be a C1 lawful use. 

Tudalen60



Location: The New Lodge Hotel  Alltwen Hill  Alltwen  
Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0258 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 5 (broadband infrastructure), 6 
(external lighting plan) and 9 (biodiversity 
enhancements) of planning permission P2023/0233 for 
residential development of up to six dwellings and 
associated works. 

Location: Harvey Crescent  Aberavon  Port Talbot  SA12 6DF     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0263 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(Construction Method Statement) of P2023/0312 
granted on 15.3.24 

Location: Pontardawe Rugby Club   Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  
SA8 4EG     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0265 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for proposed use of 
property as a residential care home for 4 no. children 
(C3 use class) 

Location: 40 Lletty Dafydd  Clyne  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 4BG   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0266 

Proposal: Change of use from office (B1) to dwellinghouse (C3) 
Location: 21 Heol Y Glo  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 

3NJ   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

Tudalen61



 

App No:  P2024/0267 

Proposal: Works to X1 Oak Tree (identified as T1) covered by 
tree preservation order T272 
T1 - Oak Tree located at rear of no.45 garden: reduce 
branches on garden side by 2m and blend into 
remaining crown. 

Location: 45 Rowan Tree Close  Bryncoch  SA10 7SJ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2024/0268 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development Application for 
proposed rear Dormer extension with juliet balcony and 
a roof light on principal roof slope. 

Location: 9 Bryn Road  Glyncorrwg  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 3AU   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2024/0270 

Proposal: Proposed double storey apex extension and single 
storey flat roof extension to rear elevation of detached 
dwelling. 

Location: 15 Ty'n Yr Heol Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 7EA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2024/0271 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed replacement of 
an existing attached conservatory with a new sunroom 
extension 

Location: 99 Penshannel  Neath Abbey  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 6PU   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

Tudalen62



App No:  P2024/0272 

Proposal: Loft conversion with front and rear velux windows 
Location: 132 Ridgewood Gardens  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA11 3QG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2024/0275 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(phase 1 contamination risk assessment), 4 
(remediation strategy) and 7 (foundation design) of 
planning permission P2022/0515 dated 16.03.23 (to 
construct a two-storey side extension and convert 
existing building to provide 12 no. self-contained flats) 

Location: Ty Mawr   Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4EG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0281 

Proposal: Front Porch 
Location: 12 Long Vue Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA12 7DU   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0283 

Proposal: Demolition of existing detached garage and single 
storey rear conservatory and construction of rear 
extension forming a family room with side extension 
comprising attached double garage with bedroom 
above with solar panels. 

Location: 16 St Davids Park  Margam  SA13 2PU       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0284 

Proposal: Single Storey Rear Garden Room 

Tudalen63



Location: 16 Plas Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0286 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 12 
(Materials) and 21 (Landscape Management Plan) of 
planning permission P2023/0369 determined on 
16.02.2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9NT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0287 

Proposal: Demolition of outbuilding and construction of a single 
storey rear extension. 

Location: 59 Lake Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 6AP   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0288 

Proposal: Proposed roof conversion, construction of three-storey 
rear extension and side garage. 

Location: 19 Parish Road  Blaengwrach  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 5SW   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2024/0290 

Proposal: Conversion of existing integral garage into living 
accommodation including new window 

Location: 145 Bryn Morgrug  Alltwen  Pontardawe  SA8 3DP     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0291 

Tudalen64



Proposal: Change of use of land from a grass verge to garden 
area and enclosing it with a fence. 

Location: 28 Cwrt Y Carw  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 2TS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0292 

Proposal: Extension and alterations to existing garage. 
Location: 72 Victoria Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA12 6AD   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0293 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(Construction Environmental Management Plan) and 6 
(construction details for the internal access routes) of 
P2023/0491 granted on 12/10/23 (description amended 
to remove discharge of condition 4 and additional and 
revised information received - 17.05.24) 

Location: Coedffranc Primary School  Stanley Road  Skewen  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2024/0298 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(contamination assessment) of planning permission 
P2023/0659 dated 21.03.2024 (replacement visitor 
centre) 

Location: Gnoll Estate Country Park   Fairyland  Neath  SA11 
3BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0300 

Tudalen65



Proposal: Non-Material Amendments to planning permission 
P2023/0491 granted consent on 12.10.23 to amend the 
wording of pre-commencement condition 4 (servicing 
and delivery plan) to allow the access improvement 
works referred to in condition 5 to be commenced prior 
to the discharge of condition 4 (amended description 
17.05.24, only wording of condition 4 now to be 
amended) 

Location: Coedffranc Primary School   Stanley Road  Skewen  
SA10 6LP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2024/0304 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 17 - 
external materials of planning application P2022/0692 
granted on 16.6.2022. 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3HA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0307 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 6 
(gigabit capable broadband infrastructure) of planning 
permission P2023/0659 dated 21.03.2024 
(replacement visitor centre) 

Location: Gnoll Estate Country Park   Fairyland  Neath  SA11 
3BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0310 

Proposal: Front and rear dormer extension. 
Location: 74 Ffynnon Dawel  Aberdulais  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA10 8EN   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

Tudalen66



App No:  P2024/0312 

Proposal: Existing garage/utility to be demolished and replaced 
with single storey granny annexe 

Location: 1 Beechwood Avenue  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3TD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0326 

Proposal: Rear garden outbuilding 
Location: 6 Heol Heddwch  Longford  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 7LF   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2024/0327 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for a proposed change of use 
to a short term let (use class C6) 

Location: 21 Park Avenue  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5DW   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0336 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to vary the 
wording of conditions 4 (sewer diversion), 5 (land 
contamination), 6 (remediation) and 18 (mine gas risk 
assessment) and to introduce a phasing condition to 
planning application P2023/0369 determined on 
16.02.2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 9NT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0340 

Proposal: Change of use of property from (A3) hot food takeaway 
(ground floor) with single upper floor flat (C3) into a 
single dwellinghouse (C3) 

Tudalen67



Location: 29 Church Street  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4JB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0361 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment to amend the wording of 
condition 5 from 3 people to 4. 

Location: 49 & 51 Station Road  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA13 1NW     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0362 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to condition 2 (list of 
approved plans) of planning permission P2024/0060 
granted consent on 29 May 2024 to amend the layout 
and design of the proposed headwall structure an 
associated works. 
 

Location: Site Comprises A Singular Application Area, Located In 
Trebanos, Neath Port Talbot (Easting: 270961, 
Northing: 202127, Ordnance Survey SN 70951 02130, 
Nearest Postcode: SA7 9JE).           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2024/0393 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate (Existing): Single 
storey rear extension 

Location: 20 Ynysygerwn Crescent  Aberdulais  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA10 8HW   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

Tudalen68


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	5 Cais Rhif. P2023-0101 - McDonalds Restaurants Ltd, Alltwen
	6 Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 13 May to 15 July 2024
	7 Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 13 May to 15 July 2024
	8 Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 13 May to 15 July 2024

